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          1  COMMITTEE ON WOMEN'S ISSUES

          2                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND: Good morning.  I

          3  am Council Member Tracy Boyland, the Chair of the

          4  Committee on Women's Issues. We will begin our

          5  hearing today.

          6                 Today's hearing on the Women's Issues

          7  Committee concerns Intro. 202- A.  We hear this bill

          8  in the context of familiar story, according to the

          9  United States of Labor Reports families now require

         10  almost two people working to maintain a middle class

         11  standard of living.  A few decades ago, a single,

         12  breadwinner could more easily bring home a family

         13  wage, yet, women continue to bear a proportionate

         14  responsibility for child care and raising a family

         15  even as they are pushed into the workforce in

         16  increasing numbers.

         17                 In this light, Council Member Eva

         18  Moskowitz has taken the initiative to introduce a

         19  bill that would require baby changing stations in

         20  certain public buildings.  This bill seeks to reduce

         21  some of the burdens faced by mothers trying to meet

         22  the burdens of daily life.  Yet, critics argue that

         23  this bill will place too much of a burden on

         24  building owners.

         25                 Today's hearing will explore this
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          2  tension between the needs of today's families and

          3  economic development.  We will hear testimonies from

          4  concerned mothers to trade associations, from the

          5  Administration and so on.

          6                 So we will begin today, but first let

          7  me begin by introducing my colleagues, and then we

          8  will hear a word from the initial sponsor of the

          9  bill, Council Member Eva Moskowitz.  To my right is

         10  Council Member Kendall Stewart from Brooklyn.  Next

         11  to him is Council Member, the infamous Charles

         12  Barron from Brooklyn.  Next to him is Council Member

         13  Eva Moskowitz from Manhattan, we will try to get her

         14  to Brooklyn soon, but.  Next to her is my assistant,

         15  Anthony Alexis.  Next to myself is my Counsel, Gill

         16  Valdez.  Oh, Gill Valdez, well, anyway, next to him

         17  is my other Counsel, Bogou (phonetic) Caravella.

         18                 Next we will hear a word from Council

         19  Member Eva Moskowitz.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ:  Thank you

         21  very much, Madam Chair.  It strikes me as no

         22  accident that this is being heard at the Women's

         23  Issues Committee, the Chair of which is a young

         24  mother herself.  Because I think it is no accident

         25  that this baby changing bill came about in a
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          2  collaborative effort between two young mothers.  I

          3  have a four- year- old son and I am expecting

          4  another one, so I am looking forward to this bill

          5  being implemented by the time my next one arrives.

          6                 It really did come out of some

          7  personal experience as well as talking with mothers

          8  and fathers all over the City. When I first ran for

          9  office, it was very, very apparent to me that the

         10  challenges of being a working mother were made much

         11  more difficult by not having baby changing tables in

         12  my district, which runs from 96th Street to 14th

         13  Street.  The only place to change a baby is at the

         14  Barnes and Nobles on 86th and 3rd.  So while

         15  campaigning, every time I had an accident, I would

         16  have to run back up to the Barnes and Nobles.

         17                 And in Europe this is not the way it

         18  works.  It is a very common practice to have baby

         19  changing tables.  And to me, this is really a

         20  quality of life issue for mothers and fathers and

         21  caretakers, as well, to be able to change a baby.

         22  It has always struck me as particularly strange that

         23  at places like parks, where you know playgrounds,

         24  which are a haven for young mothers and fathers and

         25  caretakers, you have to change a baby on the floor,
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          2  which itself is not a very clean and/or convenient

          3  place.  I note now that being pregnant, I cannot

          4  even touch my toes, so doing that is an extremely

          5  difficult proposition.

          6                 So I am very grateful that the Chair

          7  and my colleagues are willing to hold hearings on

          8  this bill.  We have tried to make it a reasonable

          9  bill.  And I am also looking forward to hearing from

         10  the critics, because there may, of course, be

         11  improvements that need to be made.  But we talk a

         12  lot about family values, and if we really mean what

         13  we say, then we have to create social policies that

         14  are indeed family friendly.

         15                 So thank you very much.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND:  Thank you,

         17  Council Member Moskowitz.  And saying on that I,

         18  too, have an 18- month- old daughter, and in

         19  venturing out from the confines of our home, we have

         20  occasionally come across issues where we have to

         21  find places to, the call of nature calls and we have

         22  to find places to do so. So this is exactly what you

         23  are saying is a quality of life issue.

         24                 First, we are going to hear from the

         25  Deputy Commissioner for the Department of Buildings,
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          2  Ronnie Livian and his assistant, David Nussbaum from

          3  the Department of Buildings. Welcome, gentlemen.

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIVIAN:  Thank

          5  you.  Good morning, Chairperson Boyland and members

          6  of the Committee on Women's Issues.  My name is Ron

          7  Livian, and I am Deputy Commissioner for Technical

          8  Affairs at the NYC Department of Buildings.  I am

          9  here to discuss Intro. 202- A.  While the Department

         10  supports providing public and appropriate baby

         11  changing stations, we respectfully disagree with the

         12  formula and the table used to determine the number

         13  of required stations.  In addition, we would like to

         14  discuss the appropriateness of placing these

         15  requirements under the Department of Buildings

         16  jurisdiction.

         17                 I have outlined below the issues that

         18  this bill raises for the Department of Buildings.

         19  This bill places these technical provisions in Title

         20  26; it would be more appropriate for placement in

         21  Title 27 of the Administrative Code where technical

         22  provisions such as these are located.

         23                 The table provided 3- 1 does not

         24  correspond with the occupancy group table, which we

         25  believe was the intent, as set forth in the Article
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          2  2, Section 27- 237 of the New York City Building

          3  Code.  Further, the table is labeled 3- 1 without

          4  the sequence as usually is provided in 1- 1 and 2-

          5  1.

          6                 A baby changing stations would

          7  generally not require a Department of Buildings work

          8  permit, and thus, would not be subject to the

          9  Department of Buildings filing or inspection

         10  requirements.  The Department of Buildings'

         11  inspectors do not have the training to evaluate the

         12  issues associated with the installation and

         13  maintenance of these stations.  There are likely

         14  many different manufacturers with varying design and

         15  installation requirements.  Further, our inspectors

         16  do not have the authority to inspect for health and

         17  sanitary conditions.

         18                 Finally, Section 2 affirmatively

         19  states that the Commissioner of Buildings shall

         20  promulgate rules and et cetera. The word "may"

         21  should be used, as rules may not be necessary.

         22                 I hope this effectively summarizes

         23  the Department's position on this bill.  And I would

         24  be happy to answer any questions at this time.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND:  After the
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          2  gentleman's testimony, then we will take questions

          3  at that time.

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIVIAN:  All

          5  right.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND:  You are not

          7  testifying, as well?

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIVIAN:  No, no,

          9  he is not testifying.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND:  Let me ask you

         11  a question, Deputy Commissioner, before I have my

         12  colleagues ask you.  We are talking about, it sounds

         13  very simple, but it is very necessary. And it is

         14  very necessary when you have children and you are

         15  traveling, again, beyond the confines of your home.

         16  And we are just, the request is to have baby

         17  changing stations in buildings that have a minimum

         18  of 250 people, and that in a minimum is a lot of

         19  people going into one place.  And we are talking

         20  about auditoriums, banquet halls, catering

         21  establishment, children's amusement parks, which

         22  would sound like a place that would automatically be

         23  confining to what we are talking about, religious

         24  house of worships, community centers, libraries,

         25  eating places, meeting places, museums, playgrounds,
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          2  recreation, stadiums, studios, swimming pools, and

          3  theaters.

          4                 Now the Administration is saying that

          5  the inspectors that they have at the present time

          6  are not trained to inspect, am I understanding you,

          7  trained to inspect baby- changing stations in

          8  bathrooms?

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIVIAN:  Because

         10  there is no permit requirement and there are no

         11  details, our inspectors will not have anything to

         12  inspect against.  Meaning that there may be

         13  Department of Health issues, or there may be other

         14  requirements, which does not exist for us.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND:  As I see my

         16  colleague's eyebrow going up, I would assume that,

         17  are there Master Degree that would be attached to

         18  the inspection dealing with the sanitary modes of

         19  baby changing stations?  Have you ever seen a baby

         20  changing stations?

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIVIAN:  Of

         22  course, and I have used plenty of them.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND:  Well, that kind

         24  of helps our argument a little.  But in terms of

         25  having an inspector, because it is, again, a quality
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          2  of life issue in dealing with this.  I am just going

          3  to take a moment and take a question from my

          4  colleague, and then we will come back and we will

          5  try to get to the bottom of your opening statement.

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIVIAN:  Sure.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND:  Council Member

          8  Moskowitz.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ:  I mean

         10  this really strikes me as the death of common sense

         11  here.  Your inspectors certainly have the ability to

         12  tell whether a baby changing station is sanitary.

         13  Any parent, my four- year- old knows when the Park

         14  bathroom is clean or not, he says, Mama, it is very

         15  dirty in here, not to put the Parks Department on

         16  the spot.  So this does not require, as the Chair

         17  said, a Master's Degree.  And, you know, by that

         18  logic, I am not sure, if that is the logic that is

         19  applied, I am not sure your Building inspectors are

         20  doing such a great job inspecting buildings.  They

         21  keep falling down, it seems to me.  So, I think that

         22  is a really, really poor argument, and it is a

         23  little bit embarrassing to have that put forth.

         24                 You know, some of your other

         25  criticism, if we put language in the wrong
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          2  Administrative Code, you know, perhaps we need to

          3  look again at that.  But it almost does not bear

          4  commenting, it does not require expertise to do this

          5  kind of oversight.  And most of the oversight you

          6  would be doing is to make sure that the entity

          7  complies with the law.  These entities have

          8  liability insurance, so they would have a self-

          9  interest in making sure that the baby changing table

         10  is actually screwed onto the wall, instead of half

         11  screwed onto the wall, because they are going to get

         12  sued if not.

         13                 Let me just go onto another larger

         14  point that you made.  You say that the Department of

         15  Buildings should not have jurisdiction.  I kind of

         16  thought it was the Administration's responsibility.

         17  Who would you like to have oversight over this, if

         18  it is not the Department of Buildings?  I mean it

         19  probably should not be the Department of Homeless

         20  Services, or the Department of Transportation, who

         21  should it be?

         22                 MR. NUSSBAUM:  That is really what, I

         23  believe Mr. Livian was just testifying to, and to

         24  answer your first questions about looking at a baby

         25  changing station and determining whether or not its
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          2  sanitary condition.  I think what Mr. Livian is

          3  testifying to is that this bill was placed under the

          4  Department of Buildings' realm, and as part of that

          5  realm, the Department of Buildings' inspectors do

          6  not inspect for those types of conditions, in terms

          7  of sanitary and health.  So for that particular

          8  reason that would not be in their purview.

          9                 Further, in terms of baby changing

         10  tables, themselves, of course, you know some of

         11  these may require, like you pointed out, you know,

         12  putting four screws into a wall perhaps to put them

         13  up.  But at the same time, this is not something

         14  that the Department of Buildings regulates.  For

         15  example, and I do not want to misspeak (sic), but if

         16  a toilet or you know some other bathroom fixture is

         17  installed, we do not, generally, inspect to see

         18  whether or not the fixture is working properly.

         19  Rather, we are in charge of inspecting plumbing, for

         20  example, so the entire plumbing system. So a fixture

         21  like this would not be in our purview as, I cannot

         22  really see any situation where there would be a

         23  necessity to have a permit for an item like this

         24  where, you know, for example, it is put up with

         25  plans, permits, et cetera, which is generally what
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          2  Buildings' inspectors go out and inspect.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ:  But the

          4  problem with this argument you are making is that

          5  what is in the purview of the Department of

          6  Buildings has changed over time, has it not?

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIVIAN:  Not - -

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ:  You have

          9  gotten new responsibilities as the world changes.

         10  It is not the case that from the beginning of time

         11  the Department of Buildings only had responsibility

         12  for X, Y, and Z.  You change with the changing

         13  times, and we are the Legislative body, so if we

         14  come up with a new problem, then agencies acquire

         15  responsibilities for new problems.

         16                 So the argument you need to make for

         17  us, is why another agency should be responsible.  So

         18  if you could answer that question, if you do not

         19  think that it is appropriate for the Department of

         20  Buildings to oversee this, the implementation of

         21  this law, do you think the Department of

         22  Transportation should be?

         23                 MR. NUSSBAUM:  Council member, you

         24  are right.  We, as the Department of Buildings, I do

         25  not think we can necessarily recommend another
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          2  agency.  Obviously, there are ancillary issues,

          3  which I am sure you are aware of, which, you know,

          4  involve health, sanitation, you know, there are

          5  other issues, obviously, involved here that, you

          6  know, may be a more appropriate venue for this

          7  legislation.  And as we stated, we do support, you

          8  know, the legislation in terms of the concept of it.

          9    It is just that where the placement is right now,

         10  it just does not fit in with the Department of

         11  Buildings role at this point.  I mean, if - -

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ:  All right,

         13  just for the record,  - -

         14                 MR. NUSSBAUM:  The way it is written.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: - -  just

         16  so my colleagues understand that when I first came

         17  up with this idea, I did go to the Administration

         18  and say, which agency do you think would be

         19  appropriate?  Because I do not particularly care

         20  which agency, I do not think most mothers and

         21  fathers and caretakers do, they just want to not

         22  simply change their babies at airports, that is not

         23  the only time babies go to the bathroom, to be

         24  graphic about it.  And so, you know, I do not think

         25  that there is any sort of we thought, oh, let's
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          2  punish the Department of Buildings giving them this

          3  new responsibility.  Any agency that would be more

          4  appropriate, we are not wedded to anything.

          5                 I think there are historical reasons,

          6  and I would have to defer to the lawyers, why they

          7  thought that this kind of thing in the absence of

          8  the Administration giving us any concrete guidance

          9  as to which agency they would like this to be under,

         10  the lawyer picked the agency that it seemed most

         11  closest to, given what other things you do.

         12                 I do not want to take up any more

         13  time, because I am sure my colleagues have other

         14  questions.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND:  Thank you.  I

         16  think to answer that question, I think we have to in

         17  our follow- up hearing invoke questions upon the

         18  Department of Health and the Department of

         19  Sanitation as well in terms of how the overview of

         20  the inspections of the baby changing stations are.

         21  But I think they were directed to the Buildings

         22  Department because you send inspectors out.  If I

         23  build a house, you send inspectors out to make sure

         24  that there is proper plumbing, to make sure that

         25  there are five bathrooms if there are 200 people,
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          2  depending on what the ratio was to make sure that

          3  baby changing stations are placed in a bathroom, not

          4  only in an airport, but in a museum, if the capacity

          5  of people are of greater than 250.  And I think that

          6  is why it was directed at you.

          7                 But let me take a question from my

          8  colleague, Council Member Barron.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  I find this

         10  testimony incredible, you obviously just do not want

         11  to have any responsibility for that.  Perhaps we

         12  need to give you two gentlemen some children and let

         13  you go around for a few days, - -

         14                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND:  Eighteen years.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  Eighteen

         16  years, but this is incredible.  I mean we are trying

         17  to make the City more baby friendly, and I did not

         18  see anything in here saying that you are not capable

         19  of doing this.  So there is not like you are saying,

         20  you are capable of handling this, if you desire to.

         21  Is that correct?

         22                 MR. NUSSBAUM:  Well I think it is

         23  more so, if it was something that fit in within our

         24  regulations, our rules, our scope of work that is

         25  generally conducted.  I think that if there was a
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          2  way it would fit in, - -

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  Well what if

          4  we help change some rules and regulations to help it

          5  fit in for you, since that is the only resistance

          6  that you seem to have is that it does not fit in.

          7                 MR. NUSSBAUM:  Well I am sure that is

          8  something that the Council and the Administration

          9  could certainly explore, you know, post this

         10  hearing.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  So if we

         12  helped you fit it in, you would be more amenable,

         13  acceptable to this idea?

         14                 MR. NUSSBAUM:  It is not a matter of

         15  really amenable Council member, I think it is just a

         16  matter of trying to work out, to see if there are

         17  issues that can be worked out.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  Let me ask

         19  you this, what would we have to do to make it more

         20  acceptable and fit into the regulations, in your

         21  opinion?

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIVIAN:  Well we

         23  are asking that you look at all of the avenues and

         24  look at some of the complications that may arise

         25  from this bill.  There may be issues like
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          2  handicapped issues and the height of these changing

          3  stations. There may be sanitation requirements

          4  besides the regular requirements that are associated

          5  with these.  There may be other safety issues, just

          6  like you do not want to, you want to make sure that

          7  these are installed properly and they do not break

          8  and fall in the middle of the weight.  So you want

          9  them to be an approved type.

         10                 In addition to that, the way they are

         11  placed right now, they are placed in a location in

         12  the code that is associated with the Fire ratings

         13  and not really associated with the number of

         14  fixtures.  They are placing a table that in the Code

         15  that is generally used for Fire rating and the Fire

         16  Index of Occupancy, and it does not relate to the

         17  number of fixtures that are associated with those

         18  occupancies.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  So what if it

         20  was placed in Title 27, what would the difference

         21  be?

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIVIAN:  It will

         23  be, it will have to specify the occupancies to more

         24  detail.  It will be under and go in a different

         25  table that is probably associated with the fixtures,
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          2  like in reference standard 16, RS16- 1.  It will

          3  also have to be studied as far as what are the

          4  requirements of the changing tables.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  And the only

          6  reason I am asking some of these questions, and I

          7  will stop there, is because I think we are using a

          8  lot of hyper- technicalities and regulations to hide

          9  behind maybe a lack of desire to take on a

         10  responsibility to do something that we believe is

         11  very simple.  And it does not require all of this,

         12  maybe behind all of this is just a lack of desire to

         13  accept a responsibility, which I hope it is not

         14  that, to make this City more baby friendly.  So I am

         15  just hoping that we can work something out where you

         16  accept this responsibility and work with us to make

         17  the bill workable, and not hide behind regulations,

         18  technicalities that seem to be something I am

         19  certain we can overcome and make this happen for the

         20  City, and particularly for the working mothers and

         21  mothers that have to go to school and have done so

         22  much for this City.  I think we owe them, at least,

         23  this to work this thing out.  So I hope we can get

         24  beyond this.

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIVIAN:  As I
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          2  mentioned before, we believe that the changing

          3  tables are required and they are absolutely

          4  necessary.  It is just a question of what is the

          5  best way of locating them, and how is, and finding

          6  the best way of inspecting them to make sure that

          7  they are safe.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND:  Thank you,

          9  Council member.  I think you so eloquently stated

         10  that we are dealing with a population that, as in my

         11  opening statement, we talked about working mothers

         12  being able to meet the transformation from being

         13  homebound to working.  I think it would behoove some

         14  of the places that were mentioned in the legislation

         15  to, it is sort of like a no brainer, a children's

         16  museum, these places should automatically say, well

         17  we want the business of the working mother or the

         18  entire family to have them.  It is inviting to a

         19  family to come in, and it is practical as you said

         20  earlier, and it is logical.  We just have to begin

         21  to work out the niches of the Department of Health,

         22  with the Department of Sanitation, and your agency

         23  to begin to kind of pull the nuts and bolts

         24  together.

         25                 So I think we are sort on the same
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          2  page, except that opening statement.

          3                 Council Member Stewart.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:   Thank you,

          5  Madam Chair. Commissioner, I am not too clear of

          6  your statement that you do not think that it should

          7  be in the Department of Buildings.  Because if you

          8  can find rules for window guards, and you can find

          9  it for smoke detectors, why couldn't you find it for

         10  having a place in the bathrooms in public places

         11  with seven requirements, why couldn't you do that?

         12  Why couldn't you have in the codes stated that there

         13  should be a table set aside for changing?

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIVIAN:

         15  Actually, window guards are part of Housing

         16  Preservation and Development, and it is not placed

         17  within the Department of Buildings, for the same

         18  reason, because it does not effect a structural or

         19  any fixtures or plumbing.  The same way that there

         20  is no furniture requirements in the Building Code,

         21  and the furniture in offices and dwellings are not

         22  of the Code and part of the jurisdiction of the

         23  Department of Buildings.  That is why we can compare

         24  it to that.

         25                 Meanwhile, you mentioned smoke
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          2  detectors.  Smoke detectors, most of them are

          3  connected electrically, so it is under jurisdiction

          4  of our electrical division, and also, they are a

          5  fire protection equipment.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  So why not,

          7  seeing that you have all that knowledge about where

          8  it should be, why not give us a suggestion, instead

          9  of dodging around and saying it should not be in the

         10  Department of Buildings?  Why not tell us exactly

         11  what it should be so that we can come up, that we

         12  can have a compromise as to how it should be done?

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIVIAN:

         14  Actually, we are too sure ourselves, where it would

         15  be.  Otherwise, we would have given you the

         16  suggestion.  Maybe a suggestion is to look at other

         17  states and other codes to see if there is a

         18  requirement and under which agency they are under.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  So are you

         20  saying that you are willing to work with us to find

         21  out where it should be? Because there are two issues

         22  here, I feel there is the sanitation, a sanitary

         23  issue, which might be with the ECB.  And another

         24  aspect of it, which has to do, to me, with structure

         25  with Building.  And if you are going to have some
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          2  sort of a table or a changing table, there should be

          3  some sort of a requirement what the specifications

          4  are.  And that, to me, should be within the

          5  Department of Buildings.  I feel it could be a

          6  connection of both, and we should not say, well, it

          7  is not our jurisdiction.

          8                 MR. NUSSBAUM:  As Mr. Livian pointed

          9  out and as we have discussed with the other Council

         10  members, we would be happy to sit down, and you

         11  know, see if there are other avenues that can be

         12  explored.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  All right,

         14  thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND:  Thank you,

         16  Deputy Commissioner and Mr. Nussbaum, we appreciate

         17  your testimony today.  You will be hearing from us

         18  when we try to do the confines of how we can

         19  initiate your input with the Department of Health

         20  and the Department of Sanitation.  We are not quite

         21  convinced that this does not fall under your

         22  purview, but we do wish that we would have your

         23  cooperation when we pull the entities together.

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIVIAN:

         25  Certainly will.  Thank you.

                                                            25

          1  COMMITTEE ON WOMEN'S ISSUES

          2                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND:  Thank you very

          3  much.  Next we will hear from the Parks and

          4  Recreation Department, Allison Wenger and Nancy

          5  Barthold.  Ladies, if you have testimony, give it to

          6  the Sergeant- At- Arms for distribution.  State your

          7  name for the record, and you may begin.

          8                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BARTHOLD:

          9  Good morning, Chairperson Boyland and members of the

         10  Committee on Women's Issues. My name is Nancy

         11  Barthold, Assistant Commissioner for Capital

         12  Projects at Parks and Recreation.  I am here on

         13  behalf of Commissioner Adrian Benepe to give

         14  testimony on Intro. 202- A.

         15                 Parks supports making the City baby

         16  friendly through the installation of baby changing

         17  stations in public spaces.  In fact, we include the

         18  installation of baby changing stations in most new

         19  construction, and have begun to include them in

         20  renovations of existing facilities.

         21                 While we support the intent of the

         22  bill, improved provision of services for parents,

         23  there are parts of the bill, which we think should

         24  be reconsidered when looking at how they would be

         25  applied to Parks.  For example, Intro. 202- A would
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          2  require retrofitting more than 680 comfort stations

          3  in parks and playgrounds, and scores more in

          4  recreation centers in stadia (phonetic) at an

          5  estimated $600 minimum cost per changing station,

          6  per bathroom, this bill would be very expensive for

          7  Parks.

          8                 In addition, Intro. 202- A

          9  specifically requires the provision of baby changing

         10  station at buildings, parks and pools. Consequently,

         11  not only would Parks have to install baby changing

         12  areas in all comfort stations, but this bill may

         13  require that Parks build new structures to house

         14  changing stations in the 1,000 plus parks that do

         15  not have comfort stations already.  The bill needs

         16  to be clarified on this point.  The construction of

         17  one new comfort station costs between six hundred

         18  and nine hundred thousand dollars.

         19                 It is fair to say that many of our

         20  comfort stations are currently in need of capital

         21  improvement.  One of our top priorities is to make

         22  these facilities functional, safe and clean. Through

         23  out requirements contracts program, we are improving

         24  plumbing and lighting at comfort stations, citywide.

         25    We will now include the installation of baby
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          2  changing stations in these projects.  However,

          3  installing stations immediately in all existing

          4  comfort stations, many of which we hope to renovate,

          5  as this bill would require, would not be the best

          6  use of our resources.

          7                 Finally, the bill's formula to

          8  determine the number of stations per site would

          9  require the installation of many more stations than

         10  we feel are necessary, specifically in our

         11  recreation centers.  For example, the majority of

         12  centers have a maximum occupancy of between 500 and

         13  1,000 people.  The bill would require, on average,

         14  the installation of five or more changing stations

         15  per center.  While we believe it is reasonable to

         16  provide some facilities installing as many as five

         17  stations at these sites that generally do not offer

         18  programming for small children seems excessive.

         19                 Given the provisions stated, we do

         20  support the installation of baby changing stations,

         21  and look forward to working with the Council on

         22  making this a workable bill.

         23                 Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND:  Thank you,

         25  ladies.  There are several questions that we have in
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          2  lieu of the new design, you are stating that the

          3  Parks Department bathrooms are not set up at this

          4  particular moment to have baby changing stations

          5  built inside of them, is this what you are saying?

          6                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BARTHOLD:  For

          7  existing facilities, we do not have the funding to

          8  go out and install them. They are $600 a piece, we

          9  do not have the labor and funding through our OTPS

         10  budget to just go and retrofit every existing

         11  station.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND:  Six hundred

         13  dollars a piece, and where are you quoting your

         14  numbers from, have you looked at a particular brand,

         15  do you have any information to state that $600?

         16  Because our numbers are increasingly lower than what

         17  you are looking at.  I mean we did not come up with

         18  $600 per baby changing station.  And are you talking

         19  about the installment of the station itself, are you

         20  talking about the retrofitting of an entire

         21  bathroom, are you talking about the manpower

         22  included in it.  Give us in terms of the numbers?

         23                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BARTHOLD:  We,

         24  the calculation I was give was $400 for the

         25  purchase, approximately $200 for the labor, and I

                                                            29

          1  COMMITTEE ON WOMEN'S ISSUES

          2  can find out where I got that from.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND:  And this is not

          4  including reconstructing an entire bathroom in a

          5  park?

          6                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BARTHOLD:  No,

          7  for those facilities we are now committing to

          8  install them.  We have two ways to improve a comfort

          9  station.  One is through a major renovation project,

         10   - -

         11                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND:  Right.

         12                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BARTHOLD: - -

         13  where we redo the whole thing at, you know, $600,000

         14  to $900,000.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND:  I know because

         16  we pay for, we pay when we want to - -

         17                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BARTHOLD:

         18  Right.  And the second way is - -

         19                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND:  Ms. Barthold,

         20  we are saying  -

         21                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BARTHOLD: - -

         22  through these smaller requirements contracts, which

         23  are about $60,000.  For the current Commissioner,

         24  renovating comfort stations is a big priority.  So

         25  we have been trying to do smaller projects when the
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          2  larger funding has prohibited us.  In those

          3  projects, we are now going to include the

          4  installation.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND:  Oh, so you have

          6  already started to do this process in some of your

          7  parks already.

          8                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BARTHOLD:

          9  Yes.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND:  So you are

         11  actually on our side, we are just trying to figure

         12  out how we can continue to move this step up into

         13  all of the parks.

         14                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BARTHOLD:

         15  Right. Logistically and in our budget, we cannot

         16  currently commit to doing it at every existing

         17  station.  We are willing to commit to put them in

         18  sites that we do construction on, both small

         19  projects and large projects.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND:  Okay.  A

         21  question from Council Member Moskowitz.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ:  The figure

         23  that you have of the cost is radically different

         24  than the figure that I have. And I went on- line as

         25  recently as yesterday just to double and triple
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          2  check the figures.  The prices that I have gotten

          3  range from $115 to $700.  If you want like the, you

          4  know, the luxury model that maybe Leserc (phonetic)

          5  would put in with steel glass, but it is hard to

          6  find something as expensive as you are citing.  So I

          7  would ask you to check the figures.  Because the

          8  ones in the airport do not cost $600.  Now the labor

          9  costs, you know, obviously add to that.

         10                 In terms of not having the funds, I

         11  mean, obviously, we have a financial crisis in the

         12  City and everything becomes more difficult.  But I

         13  cannot help but feel, sometimes when I get into

         14  these discussions about costs my sort of feminism

         15  rears its head, in the sense that, you know, when

         16  people were designing these comfort stations, I feel

         17  like there must have been people who did not have

         18  children.  Because you cannot, you would not think,

         19  I can not imagine as an architect when I am planning

         20  this playground, and I am imagining 200 little

         21  toddlers running around, and they, you know, they

         22  create the playgrounds that are clearly for the two

         23  year- olds, well, any mother knows that these two-

         24  year- olds have to go to the bathroom.  So to have a

         25  comfort station where you cannot change a baby is
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          2  just an oxymoron, and I believe that this is

          3  inexpensive enough that, you know, the City cannot

          4  simply say, well, gee, we cannot afford them.

          5                 Now, you know, I am a little more

          6  sympathetic to the notion that the intent of this

          7  bill was not to force you to build comfort stations

          8  where they did not exist in order to put the baby

          9  changing tables in them.  I would help that, and it

         10  seems that it is the case, that for the Parks

         11  Department it is a priority to have comfort

         12  stations.  But, you know, I think a few hundred

         13  dollars when you are talking hundreds of mothers and

         14  fathers and caretakers, you know, we would not say

         15  to people, you know what, we cannot afford

         16  wastepaper baskets, so we are not going to put them.

         17  You know, it is just sort of a bare minimum standard

         18  and I think we are going to have to come up with the

         19  funds, whether we are creative about it in terms of

         20  doing a public/private partnership, and maybe there

         21  are all sorts of ways that this can be accomplished

         22  that would make it a smaller burden on the public

         23  fisc (sic), but it is not acceptable to simply say,

         24  cannot do it.

         25                 You know, second wave of feminism was
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          2  the 1970s, it is now 2002, I think this is long

          3  overdue.

          4                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BARTHOLD:  I

          5  do not think that we are saying we cannot do it.  We

          6  are trying to give you the most realistic way for us

          7  to do it.  And there are an overwhelming number of

          8  facilities, you know, they have been installed in

          9  most of the women's rooms that are stadia.  They are

         10  being installed, it is just, you know, we do not

         11  like to use limited staffing and limited funds.  But

         12  most park districts have one maintenance worker who

         13  is doing the repairs, a limited, technical, service

         14  staff.

         15                 I am sure that there are options that

         16  we can work together on to try to come up with

         17  public/private partnerships, we are all about that.

         18  We are open to your options.  We just would not be

         19  right committing to say we have the resources right

         20  now to install them in every existing facility.  It

         21  does not mean that we are open to options of how we

         22  could do it.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND:  That is

         24  excellent that you said that.  I think that maybe if

         25  we can get you to stick around, we may have some
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          2  manufacturers that are here.

          3                 Now let me just ask you the question

          4  from your statement, you said that you had

          5  previously, you have already started retrofitting

          6  bathrooms at this particular time at the price of

          7  $400 for purchase and $200 for labor, have you

          8  started anything?             ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER

          9  BARTHOLD:  No, we have only put them in existing

         10  construction projects.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND:  Oh, so they

         12  have already been a part of what we have done with

         13  our capital budget already.

         14                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BARTHOLD:

         15  Yes.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND:  And you do not

         17  have price in terms of what you are doing on that

         18  level, or is this the main price?

         19                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BARTHOLD:  I

         20  can get a price for you when it is done as a capital

         21  project.  I do not know what- -

         22                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND:  Because I think

         23  what the Council member is alluding to when she, you

         24  know, she mentioned public/private partnership,

         25  which is an excellent idea, but at some level we
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          2  have already begun to pay for the reconstruction of

          3  our parks.  And if it could be done at a cheaper

          4  level, then maybe we can expound on it a little bit

          5  in our next budget, if possible, to do something to

          6  make this happen.  We just need a willingness from

          7  you to work with us, since Parks are the baby

          8  friendliest places that we know at this particular

          9  moment.

         10                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BARTHOLD:

         11  Right.  When you have a construction project

         12  mobilized, anything is less expensive because you

         13  already have the workforce in place.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND:  We understand.

         15                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BARTHOLD:  You

         16  know, we do not have the wherewithal in our

         17  contracting ability to just let a contractor or

         18  someone to go to multiple sites and install baby

         19  changing stations.  So, we will work with you, we

         20  will hear your options.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND:  That is what we

         22  want to hear. I think that is what Council Member

         23  Moskowitz likes to hear.  All right, thank you,

         24  ladies, we appreciate your testimony.

         25                 Next, we will have a word from
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          2  Barbara Janowitz, who is from the League of American

          3  Theatres and Producers.

          4                 MS. JANOWITZ:  My name is Barbara

          5  Janowitz.  I am with the League of American Theatres

          6  and Producers, which is the trade association for

          7  the Broadway Theatre Industry.

          8                 Madam Chairwoman and Committee

          9  members, thank you for the opportunity to testify

         10  today on behalf of the Broadway theatres regarding

         11  your proposed legislation to require baby changing

         12  stations in rest rooms of public buildings.

         13                 The first point I would like to make

         14  is, where was this legislation 15 years ago when I

         15  needed it?

         16                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND:  Eva was not in

         17  the Council 15 years ago.

         18                 MS. JANOWITZ:  Boy, I wish you were.

         19  As a mother, I know all too well the nightmares of

         20  having to change a baby's diaper in a crowded public

         21  restroom with no sanitary place to lie the baby

         22  down.  It is yet another of the miraculous juggling

         23  acts that we are called upon to perform as mothers,

         24  and I applaud the Committee for working to correct

         25  this problem.
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          2                 However, that said, I would like to

          3  make the point that Broadway Theatres, with a few

          4  exceptions that I will mention later, simply do not

          5  admit children under the age of four years. So

          6  requiring them to install baby- changing stations

          7  would be irrelevant.  The Shubert, Nederlander and

          8  Jujamcyn Organizations, who are the owners and

          9  operators of nearly every Broadway house, have a

         10  stated policy that they do not admit children under

         11  the age of 4 years they do not admit babes in arms,

         12  nobody.

         13                 The only exceptions anywhere to this

         14  policy are Disney, who re- built the New Amsterdam

         15  Theatre on 42nd Street, home to The Lion King, an

         16  did include a number of baby changing stations in

         17  both their men's rooms and women's rooms, since

         18  being Disney, they knew they would be doing almost

         19  exclusively children's programming.  And when Beauty

         20  and the Beast moved into the Lunt Fontanne Theatre,

         21  they were able to install a baby changing station

         22  there, even though they had the policy of nobody

         23  under the age of four coming in.

         24                 Broadway Theatres are, for the most

         25  part, old, landmarked, and with limited space.  Any
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          2  additional space the theatres could possibly find in

          3  their rest rooms should not be required to be used

          4  for baby changing stations, but put to better use to

          5  increase the number of available bathroom stalls, a

          6  number that is currently inadequate as any woman in

          7  this room who attends Broadway shows surely knows.

          8  The theatres are trying to correct this for the

          9  comfort of those theatregoers over the age of four

         10  who are actually admitted to the theatre.

         11                 So, we do applaud the Committee for

         12  taking on this issue, but respectfully urge you not

         13  to include theatres and other places for which

         14  installing baby changing stations would be

         15  irrelevant because of their stated admission policy.

         16                 Thank you for this opportunity to

         17  express the theatre industry's feelings on this

         18  matter.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND:  Thank you,

         20  Barbara, I think in previous discussions that the

         21  Council has had in terms of legal, I think we are in

         22  agreement, as I am the only one who took my 18

         23  month- old to see Lion King, which, well we will

         24  talk about, I enjoyed it.

         25                 MS. JANOWITZ:  What did you pay for
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          2  that ticket?

          3                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND:  Oh, but anyway,

          4  I think that we are in agreement as we know that

          5  there are some niches that we are going to have to

          6  begin to work out on the legislation.  We have had a

          7  conversation, Council Member Moskowitz and I on the

          8  removal of theatres from this.  And we want to try

          9  to have more family programs like the Lion King,

         10  Beauty and the Beast and those on Broadway.  But we

         11  do understand, taking my 18- month- old to see 42nd

         12  Street may not be the most appropriate thing for us

         13  to do.  So, we are in agreement with you.

         14                 MS. JANOWITZ:  Great.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND:  Thank you very

         16  much.

         17                 MS. JANOWITZ:  Thank you very much.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND:   Next, we will

         19  have Mr. Mendolson (sic), welcome, Sir. I hope I did

         20  not mutilated your name too much.

         21                 MR. MENDELSON:  I am sorry, simple

         22  name.  My name is Jon Mendelson.  Good morning.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND:  Mendelson, I

         24  did not - -

         25                 MR. MENDELSON:  Yes.  All right, so
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          2  my name is Jon Mendelson.  I have been asked to

          3  appear this morning and testify on behalf of Intro.

          4  202- A.  Let me preference it by saying that we are

          5  a distributed for baby changing stations,

          6  nationally, and we also have a division of my

          7  company that does installation of the baby changing

          8  stations, so I have intimate knowledge of everything

          9  that is going on as far as pricing, installation,

         10  accessibility, maintenance, and all that good stuff.

         11    So let me read down this, and then we will get

         12  through that.

         13                 The brief history on SCI and at

         14  present, SCI is a national installation company that

         15  provides retail store maintenance and repair work to

         16  various retailers throughout the United States, and

         17  by virtue of that we built this massive group of

         18  installation contractors, about 10,000 that work for

         19  me.  Okay, and the company is 13- years- old, and in

         20  the last year it created a division whereby we

         21  became a distributor for Koala, and we distribute,

         22  sell them, and we also sell them with installation.

         23                 Several points I was asked to discuss

         24  are the baby changing stations there are several

         25  manufacturers out there.  There is not a whole
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          2  handful of them in hundreds, but there are three,

          3  four, five manufacturers out there with different

          4  types of baby changing stations that are available.

          5                 Availability of products are not sold

          6  retail.  They go through distribution.  They can be

          7  bought through the Internet. Janitorial suppliers

          8  have been traditionally the avenue, and commercial

          9  restroom suppliers.  And sometimes you would see

         10  them in kitchen suppliers would also sell them.

         11                 The pricing, they range from $125 to

         12  $300 approximately for the plastic models, and then

         13  they have the Rolls Royce of models, the stainless

         14  steel, and they even have some brass models coming

         15  out, that run from $750 to about $1,300 per unit.

         16                 Installation, there are three methods

         17  of installation.  The buyer can install the product

         18  themselves.  Most products are sold with

         19  installation instructions and complete hardware

         20  packages.  Handyman, local handyman, Park

         21  Departments, we sell tons to Park Departments and

         22  they install them, themselves all the time.  And

         23  then there is the third avenue, which is an outside

         24  installation company, such as ourselves.

         25                 As far as installation, the time to

                                                            42

          1  COMMITTEE ON WOMEN'S ISSUES

          2  install it, typically is 20 to 30 minutes, and it

          3  consists of drilling four holes into the wall, and

          4  mounting it with anchors.

          5                 The maintenance of the product is

          6  fairly simple.  It should be wiped down daily and

          7  disinfected, and it should be checked to make sure

          8  that it is securely mounted at all times. Every time

          9  it is maintained and cleaned, and there is also a

         10  safety strap on the product that, as well, should be

         11  checked to make sure that it is functional and

         12  operational and not fraying or anything like that.

         13                 I created a, I grabbed something off

         14  of a Howard Research Independent Study that

         15  basically said that there was a total increase in

         16  longer visits, more frequent returns and higher

         17  spending of the customer of the stores where these

         18  units are placed.

         19                 And the last thing, one other point I

         20  would like to make is that years and years ago,

         21  these were considered luxury items; today they are

         22  considered a necessity.

         23                 Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND:  Thank you.  Eva

         25  has a question, go ahead Eva.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ:  Thank you,

          3  Madam Chair. Obviously, I am very interested in your

          4  20 to 30- minute installation, since the Parks

          5  Department testified it sounded like a much more

          6  complicated undertaking.  In sympathy to them

          7  though, I do find often companies tell you it is 20

          8  to 30- minutes, and you know, when I install

          9  computer software, what they say should take 7

         10  minutes, sort of takes me a much longer time.  So I

         11  just wanted to, since I asked them the hard

         12  questions, ask you the hard questions.  You know, 20

         13  to 30- minutes, how do you know that is really the

         14  case?

         15                 MR. MENDELSON:  I know it is the case

         16  because my company is an installation company, and

         17  we install 50, 60 units a month.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ:  But

         19  presumably you have gotten down to 20 or 30 minutes,

         20  because your guys do this all the time, or I should

         21  not say guys that may be sexist, - -

         22                 MR. MENDELSON:  Installers.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: - - whoever

         24  you are, your installers do this, you know, have you

         25  ever had your like friend read the instructions and
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          2  try to put it together?

          3                 MR. MENDELSON:  They are basically

          4  the unit comes assembled, and you line it up on the

          5  wall and mark out your holes and drill it.  And we

          6  use carpenters and handyman to install them. So, on

          7  occasion you may get a little, depending on a wall

          8  type, if you hit a blocked wall as opposed to a

          9  sheetrock wall, it may take a little longer, but I

         10  have never seen an installation take more than 45

         11  minutes.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ:  Okay, so

         13  on the outset, you could imagine this for someone

         14  who is less, who has done this less frequently, this

         15  taking an hour.  But you cannot imagine it taking

         16  three hours.

         17                 MR. MENDELSON:  Correct.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ:  Okay, that

         19  is helpful. Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND:  Yes, it is

         21  ironic that Eva brought that up.  We must have the

         22  Rolls Royce model in the parks. I am going to those

         23  parks immediately to see what models they are

         24  having.

         25                 But your testimony was very

                                                            45

          1  COMMITTEE ON WOMEN'S ISSUES

          2  interesting, $125 to $300 per baby changing

          3  stations, and there are only about five companies

          4  that actually, four to five companies that actually

          5  do that.

          6                 MR. MENDELSON:  Right, correct.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND:  As I look at

          8  one of the manufacturers and they are actually

          9  showing the design, the innovation of the baby

         10  changing stations, the accessibility for

         11  wheelchairs, and of course, how reliable it actually

         12  is.  And it only takes the average non- handy person

         13  an hour or 45 minutes to do this, or less, right?

         14                 MR. MENDELSON:  Yes, I would just be

         15  careful in that as that you do have to install it

         16  and it has to be securely mounted and properly

         17  installed on the wall.  And you would not want

         18  someone who is not comfortable around tools

         19  installing it, because you are putting a child on

         20  it.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND:  Okay.  Let's

         22  talk about the sanitary issues for a moment.  You

         23  said that it needs to be wiped down daily.  One of

         24  the concerns that we have is that we are going to

         25  have to, at some point, talk to the Department of
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          2  Health or the Department of Sanitation to talk about

          3  the sanitary issues of a baby changing station.

          4  Let's just say, can you get bola, or give me

          5  something, can you get some kind of major disease or

          6  something if it is not wiped down daily.  Normally,

          7  you do that, you do not put your baby on something

          8  that is just dirty.  We are talking about

          9  enforcement really.

         10                 When we talk about the installing of

         11  the baby changing station, we also want to talk

         12  about how sanitary it is and the upkeep that we are

         13  going to need to present to the Department of

         14  Sanitation or the Department of Health.  Have you

         15  heard of anyone receiving any major disease from a

         16  baby changing station that has not been wiped down

         17  daily?

         18                 MR. MENDELSON:  No, I have not.

         19  Something I failed to mention is that the unit that

         20  you have the brochure, has a liner, it comes with a

         21  safety, sanitary liner, and a dispenser is included

         22  or built into the product in the back, and they are

         23  disposable liners.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND:  Oh, that is

         25  excellent.  So, Eva go ahead.

                                                            47

          1  COMMITTEE ON WOMEN'S ISSUES

          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ:  Just one

          3  other point for the record, I mean, and I am sure,

          4  Tracy, both you and I do this, whenever we go to a

          5  baby changing station, we wipe it down.  And in

          6  fact, in my diaper bag, I have a plastic mat, so I

          7  am prepared because usually there is no baby

          8  changing stations, so I have to put my plastic mat

          9  on the floor.  And as long as we are talking about

         10  sanitary conditions, let's just for the record

         11  remember that the bathrooms that we are using, if,

         12  which I do not believe one could get any kind of

         13  communicable disease from a dirty baby changing

         14  table, you can also get that from a toilet seat and

         15  from the floor.  It is not as if we have a

         16  cleanliness problem in general, both in restaurants

         17  and in parks and so forth.  So, obviously, the City

         18  needs to do its utmost to try to keep places as

         19  clean as possible.  But I would hate for a fear of a

         20  lack of cleanliness to mean that we have to change

         21  babies on the floor, which is certainly less clean.

         22  So, thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND:  We have also

         24  been joined by Council Member Domenic Recchia, who

         25  is the Chief of the Cyclones of Coney Island, and
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          2  the Aquarium, and as we know, he is from Brooklyn.

          3  Domenic, do you have a statement you would like to

          4  say? Wonderful, okay.

          5                 So in lieu of what we have, we would

          6  love for you to actually do a partnership with us,

          7  to sit down with us to meet with the necessary

          8  agencies.  The Parks Department was wonderful enough

          9  to stay here and to listen to your testimony.  But

         10  the information that you have bestowed upon us is

         11  very interesting, especially that Rolls Royce model,

         12  I would love to see what that looks like.  And how

         13  we can possibly work for a safety issue and for a

         14  sanitary issue for the baby changing stations that

         15  we want to do in a number of agencies or places that

         16  are 250 people or more.

         17                 So thank you very much for your

         18  testimony, Sir.

         19                 MR. MENDELSON:  You are welcome.

         20  Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND:  Next, we will

         22  have a statement from Laura Hamilton, who is a Mom,

         23  wonderful.  Happy to have you here, Laura.

         24                 MS. HAMILTON:  Good morning,

         25  Chairperson Boyland and members of the Committee.
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          2  My name is Laura Hamilton, and I am a mother, you

          3  could hold your applause.  I traveled this morning

          4  from Bay Ridge, Brooklyn, Marty Golden's District,

          5  in order to discuss a matter of importance to all

          6  New York City parents and caregivers, the need for

          7  safe and clean baby changing stations in public

          8  places.

          9                 I think the best way to discuss this

         10  issue is for you to hear a personal story.

         11  Although, it is personal, it is not isolated.  I

         12  think it is safe to say that this has happened to

         13  almost every parent or caregiver at one time or

         14  another.

         15                 Picture the cutest, sweetest, little

         16  baby you have ever seen, any baby will do.  He is

         17  about four- months- old, and you are out and about,

         18  showing him your fabulous City.  All of a sudden,

         19  his face changes, you see him pushing, and you know

         20  what is happening.  When he is finished, you notice

         21  that his waste has crept up his back and out of the

         22  sides of his diaper.  You start feeling anxious, but

         23  you know that in your overstuff diaper bag you have

         24  almost everything you could possibly need.  Your

         25  babe starts crying, he is uncomfortable, so you pick
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          2  him up and take him to the bathroom.  You open the

          3  bathroom door and there is not a changing table to

          4  be found.

          5                 Immediately, your mind starts

          6  creating scenarios. Should I change him on the

          7  toilet lid again?  No, the last time he almost fell

          8  off.  How about the sink?  It is too small.  Is

          9  there a counter?  No.  You look down at the floor,

         10  it is dirty, it is crusty, you wonder when the last

         11  time it was mopped, then you think, they probably

         12  used a dirty mop anyway.  Your baby is crying, it is

         13  turning into a wail.  As you look at the dirty floor

         14  you realize it is the safest place for your sweet,

         15  little, four- month old baby to be changed.

         16                 So you try your best to line the

         17  floor with paper towels, place your changing pad on

         18  top and get to work.  The little guy is squirming,

         19  the paper towels are not doing their job, and your

         20  experience at this establishment went from

         21  potentially fabulous to its time to go.

         22                 Now let's go back to when you first

         23  opened that bathroom door.  Imagine opening the door

         24  and seeing one of those fabulous Koala Care Bear

         25  changing stations.  It is clean, it has safety
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          2  straps, plus it has the special sanitary paper, and

          3  you change your baby peacefully.  Your baby's needs

          4  have been met, as well as your own.

          5                 It seems like common sense to me,

          6  parents who feel that their needs are being met are

          7  happier.  If it is easier to bring your baby with

          8  you when you go shopping, or to a restaurant, you

          9  will do so more often.  Happier parents will spend

         10  more money, and the gears of capitalism will turn.

         11                 Every day I here about another friend

         12  or acquaintance who is fleeing the City for the

         13  family friendly suburbs.  The suburbs seem to know

         14  the deal, you can tell by the fact that every mall

         15  has well equipped and sanitary baby changing

         16  stations, some even provide diapers, but let's not

         17  get into that.

         18                 Let's work to make this City family

         19  friendly.  Last year approximately 150,000 babies

         20  were born in New York City. Although, they cannot

         21  voice their opinions here today, I am here as their

         22  voice and the voice of their parents and caregivers.

         23    When I say, if this bill passes you will improve

         24  the quality of life, you should hear me.  In the

         25  end, this discussion is about the natural process of
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          2  elimination, so let's naturally pass this agenda

          3  through.  Please show how important our youngest

          4  members of society are to you, and please help all

          5  caregivers by making their challenging jobs a little

          6  easier.  We need safe and clean changing stations in

          7  our City.

          8                 Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND:  Excellent.

         10  John, I think you found your spokesperson for baby

         11  changing stations right here. Thank you, Laura

         12  Hamilton.

         13                 Let me have Domenic make a statement,

         14  if you would like, and then Eva, and then close up.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA:  I do not

         16  have any questions, I would just like to make a

         17  statement.  I am the father of three little girls,

         18  one- year- old, two- year- old, and four- year old.

         19  And the thing that I would like to see added to this

         20  bill is that changing tables should not just be in

         21  the rest rooms for the ladies, but for the men also.

         22    Because why does everything have to fall on my

         23  wife?  Many times we go with three little girls, how

         24  do we change them, my wife is exhausted, she is a

         25  stay- home Mom, she takes care of the girls.  We go
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          2  to a mall, and before you know it, she is always the

          3  one who has to go in, she is the one who has to do

          4  all the work.  I would like the responsibility, it

          5  is very hard for me to change my daughters and take

          6  them into the men's room, because where do I put my

          7  child down?  But there is a need for this, and we

          8  hear testimony about the quality of life getting

          9  better.

         10                 If you go into the suburbs, you are

         11  right, they accommodate the family.  They

         12  accommodate people with children. When you go into

         13  these restaurants, it is friendly atmospheres and

         14  they have the changing tables in rest rooms.

         15                 I support this bill, but I also would

         16  like it to be added, we should add changing tables

         17  in the men's room also.  Do not leave us out, there

         18  are a lot of gentlemen out there that would love to

         19  change their children and help their wives.

         20  Remember a lot of marriages is a partnership, it is

         21  not just up to the wife to do all the work, and I

         22  need the time to help my wife, and I would like to

         23  see that the changing tables are in the men's room.

         24                 Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND:  Well thank you,
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          2  thank you, and I think that is part of our

          3  legislation, as Eva shakes her heard, we will make

          4  sure that, although, we are the Women's Issues

          5  Committee that we are inclusive of men, we are very

          6  inclusive of them.

          7                 Eva, do you have a closing statement?

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ:  Yes, I

          9  just wanted to publicly thank Laura Hamilton for

         10  coming in and for her eloquent testimony.  It does

         11  recall many incidences of trying to change a baby.

         12  And I am now thinking about how much more

         13  complicated it is going to be since I have a four-

         14  year- old, and I have to bring the four- year- old

         15  into the women's room while I change the infant on

         16  the floor, and it seems like it is going to become

         17  expeditiously harder.  And perhaps not being quite

         18  as organized as you, I do not always have all of the

         19  supplies that I thought I had, and so it becomes

         20  even more complicated when you are not quite as

         21  organized as you sound.

         22                 So thank you very, very much, I

         23  really appreciate it.  And I just want to thank the

         24  Chair for all of her assistance with this, it was

         25  very, very nice to have this hearing.  Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND:  Thank you, Eva.

          3    I just want to also mention, she is having a baby

          4  now, so we will be really working on the Council, at

          5  City Council Hall at 250 on baby changing stations

          6  first, then we are going to get to the Parks

          7  Department on those Rolls Royce ones.  But I want to

          8  thank Eva for introducing Intro. No. 202- A as we

          9  have a lot of work to do, I think this is

         10  legislation that will go very, very far.  I think it

         11  is, as Domenic said, a quality of life issue, and

         12  there are things that we must begin to do to make

         13  New York City more baby friendly.

         14                 So thank you all for joining us, and

         15  that will be the close of our hearing.

         16                 (Hearing concluded at 11:10 a.m.)
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